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: Hastings Academies Trust (formerly University of Brighton Academies Trust)

Trustees Report for the year ended 31 August 2017 -

' Introductlon

The Trustees present their annual report together with the fmancnal statements and Audltor’s

" Report of the Hastings Academies Trust (formerly University of Brighton Academies Trust)! for the
year ended 31 August 2017. The annual report serves the purposes of both a trustees’ report and
a dlrectors report under company law. .

"The Hastings Academres Trust (formerly University of Brighton Academies Trust) ‘has been
established for the purpose of advancing education in the United Kingdom for the publlc benefit.
The Trust operates six academies in Sussex as follows:

Academy Phase - Date joined Type Capacity "Number on
: ' o roll in
2016/17
(Oct 2016

' , . A census)
The Burgess Hill | Secondary | September | Sponsored 1,200 770
Academy : 2016 -
Blackthorns Primary April 2015 Converter 210 (inc. 240
Community : ' ' SEN Facility
Primary Academy of 8) ,
Desmond ~ | Primary . | February Converter 420 (inc. 379 (with
Anderson Primary | - - 12017 SEN Facility . nursery
Academy. , : . of 18) | 434)
‘Holmbush. Primary Primary | April 2015 Converter 210 205 (with
Academy nursery
, : . R . 214)
Lindfield Primary Primary September | Converter - 630 563
Academy o 12015 = . :
Pound Hill Infant Infant ' September | Converter 270 270
Academy 2015 N

B Total | 2,940 2,427

With nursery 2,491

" Desmond Anderson and Holmbush primary academies operate a nursery from their academies.

The number of pupils at Desmond Anderson and Lindfield primary academies are increasingb
incrementally, following increases to their published admtssmns number in 2014 and 2013

4 respectlvely

Structure, ,Governanc'e and Management

Constitution

- The Trustis a company limited by guarantee and an exempt chanty The Memorandum and
" Articles of Association are the primary governing documents of the Trust. The Trustees are also
the Directors of the charitable company for the purposes of Company Law. The University of-

- Brighton is the sponsor of the Trust

A

' The University of Brighton Academies Trust changed its name to Hastings Academies Trust on 1 September 2017. All
references to Hastings Academies Trust in this document are referring the company known as University of Brighton
"Academies. Trust untit 1 September 2017. For ease of reference the term ‘Trust’ is normally used when referring to’
Hastings Academies Trust (formerly University of Brighton Academies Trust).
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Hasting's Academies Trust (formerly University of Brighto-n Academies Trust)

Details of the Trustees who served throughout the year are mcluded in the Reference and
Adm|n|stratrve Details sectlon above

Members Liability. = T - : .
.Each member of the University of Brighton Academles Trust undertakes to contribute to the assets

of the Trust in the event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after
. they cease to be a member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts
and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be a member. :

Trustees' Indemnities , '
Every Trustee is lndemnlfred out of the assets. 'of the Trust against any liability incurred by h|m/her

{in that capacity in defending any proceedmgs whether criminal or civil, in which judgment is given
in favour or in which he is acquitted or in connection with any application in which relief is granted
to him by the court from liability for negligence, default breach of duty or breach of trust in‘relation

‘to the affairs of the Trust

Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees

In accordance with-the Trust’s Articles of Association, the University of Brighton, as sponsor may
appoint up to six Sponsor Trustees. The ‘University may also appoint up to one School Sector
Trustee taking into account nominees of potential School Sector Trustees notified by the Trust's
Local Governing Bodies. The Chief Executive is also a Trustee. Up to five chairs of the Trust’s
local governlng bodies can be apponnted as Academy Trustees '

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees

The Trust is committed to adopting best practice in all. aspects of corporate governance. The

_ current Trustees have been selected on the basis of having experience at Board level in other
similar organisations. The Trust has established procedures for the induction and training of new

Trustees, who may not have the same level of experience. A similar approach is taken to the

induction and tramnng of new members of local governing bodies.

Organlsatlonal Structure '
The Board of Trustees is the Trust's governing body and is responsible for policy direction. The

Board of Trustees meets at least four times a year. The Board currently has one committee which
is the Resources & Audit Committee, which meets at least three times a year. The Board of -
Trustees has established five panels which meet as required - these are the Admissions,
Exclusions, Grievance, Disciplinary and Complaints panels. The Board of Trustees is represented. .
on these panels. An Education Advrsory Group advises the Board on education and standards

related matters.

The Trust has also establlshed a Local Governlng Body for each academy. Each academy s Local
Governing Body includes up to two members who are parents of pupils in the academy, who are
elected by parent of pupils in the academy. A further member of each Local Governing Body is a

member of staff of the academy, who is elected by staff in the academy.’

Local governing bodies have a range of formal delegated responsnbllltles associated with the
' |mplementat|on of the Trust's vision and vaIues and its policies. A

: Durmg 2016/17; a major review of the Trust s governance structure was undertaken to be
implemented from 1/9/17, which was completed in conjunction with a proposal to merge the
University of Brighton Academiés Trust and the Hastings Academies Trust. The aims of the review
were to maximise efficiencies.and minimise duplication; provide absolute clarity regarding
accountability; ensure complete transparency in roles and responsibilities; promote the principle of
shared responsibility for the outcomes of all children and young people; ensure that governance -
structures reflect the flexibility of executive structures; ensure that colleagues contributing to the
governance of the trust are highly skilled and experienced; consider the ways in which the
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Hastings Academies Trust (formerly University of Brighton Academies Trust)

governance structure can more strongly link to the academies local communities and |mprove
communications across the trust. :

Under the revised arrangements, the Board of Trustees will be supported by four specialist
committees (Education & Standards; Finance & Resources; Risk & Audit; and Remuneration &
HR), a Local Board for each academy or group of academies (with responsibilities including the
academy’s vision & strategic plan, community engagement and pupil wellbeing) and a formally
constituted Chairs Forum (comprising trustees and local board chairs). A

The Trust is ma‘naged by the Chief Executive together with a senior management team and central
support staff. The senior management team comprises the Chief Executive, the Director of -
Planning, Policy and Governance, the Director of Operational Serwces the Director of School
Improvement and the Principals of the academies

The Trust is a single legal entity which must account separately to the Department for Education in
relation to each academy. The Chief Executive is the Trust's Accountmg Officer.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The pay and remuneration of key management personnel (members of the Executive Team and
Academy Principals) is set by the Board of Trustees ‘and is in accordance with the Trust s Senior
_ Staff Pay and Appraisal Policy.

Related Partles and other Connected Charities and Organlsatlons _ :
As the sponsor of the Trust, the University of Brighton has provided managerial and admimstratwe
support to enable the Trust to achieve its objectives. It has also provides professional development
opporlunities, via its School of Education, to members of staff in the Trust..

Several members of the Trust’s Senior Management Team (Chief Executive, Director of Rlanning,
Policy and Governance, Director of Operational Services and Director of School Improvement) and
one member of administrative staff supporting the Trust’s work have contracts of employment with .
the University of Brighton (a proportion of their salary"costs are re-charged to the Trust).

The Unuversrty of Brighton is also the lead sponsor of a second multi academy trust comprlsed of
two secondary and seven primary/infant academies in Hastings and St Leonards. This Trust was
originally named Hastings Academies Trust and changed its name to Universrty of Brighton
Academies Trust on 1/9/17. The two trusts have a shared executive management team ’
(specifically, Chief Executive, Director of Planning, Policy and Governance, Director of Operational
. Services and Director of School Improvement). The University of Brighton Academies Trust
(formerly Hastings Academies Trust) provides the central support services at cost price to the
Hastings Academies Trust (formerly University of Brighton Academies Trust). There are shared -
school improvement and professuonal development activities across the two trusts.

During the 2016/17 year, the Trustees of the two Trusts resolved to merge to become a single
multi academy trust. This was effected by the academies comprising the Hastings Academies .
Trust (formerly University of Brighton Academies Trust) transferring to the University of Brighton
Academies Trust (formerly Hastings Academies Trust) with effect from 1/9/17. The names of the
two trusts swapped on the same date. - :

' ObjectiVes and  Activities :

' Objects and Aims '

- The objectives of the Trust as set out in its Artlcles of Assocration are specifically restricted to the
following: “to advance for the public benefit education in the United Kingdom, in particular but
without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing by establishing, maintaining, carrying on,
managing and developing schools offering a broad and balanced curriculum”
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Hastings Academies Trust (formerly. University of Brighton Academies Trust)

The Trust s overall aim is to transform teachlng and learnlng for the mutual beneflt of pUpl|S
academres and their staff, and local communities.

.Objectives, Strategres and Actrvrtles '

The Trust's objectlves are: '

e To build on the Trust's family of schools by provrdmg mutual challenge and support through
peer working and school to school support; '
e _To provide challenge and timely support to academies;

. .From the Trust's links with the University of Brighton, to provide first class, evidence based
education research that is recognised locally, nationally and internationally and is relevant both
to academy leaders and policy makers; to provide access to research that identifies best - ‘
practice so that school improvement is rapid, sustainable and continuous, réoted in evidence of ,
successful practice elsewhere that can be differentially applied to individual schools accordrng
to their circumstances; and to eprort the links between rnltral teacher training with school =~
improvement initiatives;

o To provide high quality teaching and learning, underprnned by strong and effectrve leadership; .

» To provide career pathways and high quality professional development to all staff wrthln the
Trust, from initial teacher training to leadership; . :

e To provide a robust performance management framework that links performance related pay to

“achievement;
e To provide a strong team of well-qualiﬁed staff responsible for the delivery of support services.

The Trust’s school rmprovement strategy is based on challenge and support collaboratron school
‘to school support and professional development. A Strategic Improvement Group oversees school
improvement activity, with responsibility for. (i) identifying common priorities and co-ordinating trust
~ level actions; (ii) facilitating the sharing of good practice and staff expertise across the trust; (iii) '

considering how to develop career progression opportunities, including the development of Lead
Principals and Expert Practitioners; and (iv) developing and monitoring the trust’s annual strategic
improvement plans. A strong school improvement workforce is being developed, drawing on
internal expertise and complemented by external experts and support from national teaching-

. schools. The strategy also maximises links with the University’s School of Education, in support of

the training and professronal development of staff:

The Trust's strategy for the development and |mplementatlon of its vision is based upon the
capacities of the University and its strategic partners to provide all the elements necessary for the
sustainable development of successful schools. These capacities include: intervention, where this
is required; research into school improvement (including best practice and how this is successfully
applied in differing settrngs) the development of curriculum expertise; sustainable supply of the
best teaching staff through initial teacher training and professional development, particularly
shortage subjects; performance management of staff at all levels within the academies; and the
delivery of high quality back office professional services that will deliver value for money support,
including finance, HR, facrlrtles management ICT, marketing and governance

Durlng 2016/1 7, as part of the proposal to merge the Unrversrty of Brighton Academies Trust and
Hastings Academies Trust, the trusts’ values, vision.and mission were revrewed and refreshed,

_ ready for the latinch of the merged trust from 1/9/17.

AEENY

Public Benefrt "
The Board has referred to the gurdance contained in the Charity Commlssron s general guidance _

on public benefit when reviewing the Trust's aims and objectives and in planning future activities.
In particular, the Trustees considered how planned activities would contribute to the aims and

objectives they have set

The Trust provides’ benet’ ts to the publlc by addlng value through its academies and by achlevrng
the followrng objectives: - ‘
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HaStingS Academies Trust (formerly University of Brighton Academies Trust)

¢~ toraise educatlonal standards by addmg value through innovation and by creatmg new-
~ opportunities for students
« to ensure high attainment and improved social mobility and inclusion :
e ' to provide an education where children become successful and, in due course confldent
" adults who are sought after by employers
. to provide an inclusive ethos whlch values dlversny, greater mtegratlon and community
" cohesion ‘
-+ to create awareness of envrronmental issues facmg the world and to develop |nnovat|ve
projects in which young people can participate - .
¢ to enable parents, carers and local communities to benefit from the facilities of academles,
where practicable, for education, training, health, fitness and recreation.

Strategic Report
Key Educational Performance Indicators
Progress and attainment

Secondary academy

In"2016/17 the provisional Attamment 8 score for The Burgess Hill Academy was 48, which i |s
above national averages, and 69% of students achieved grade 4 or above in the new reformed
‘GCSEs in English Language/English Literature and mathematics. The academy’s provisional
Progress 8 score was -0.08. Over 20% of students achieved A* or A grades in GCSEs.

The academy was above the government S ﬂoor measure.

Primary academies

Key Stage 2 '
Nationally, 60.9% of pupils reached the expected -standard in readlng writing and mathematics
combined (the government’s floor measure is 65%). The percentage reaching the expected
standard in reading, writing and maths in each primary academy in the Trust is set out below.

Blackthorns | Desrnond . Holmbush Lindfield
. Anderson : :
174 54.2 , 46.2 . 63.0

There is also a progress measure for each academy, which is. based on national progress rates
from key stage 1.outcomes. The progress |n each primary academy in the Trust is set out below:
(4 = Above Floor measure). .

Progress. Floor Blackthorns Desmond- - Holmbush Lindfield .
' target Anderson ' -
Reading . |: 1. 10 | & -3.9 A 22 [ A 25 )
Writing R 0.3 r | 17 - -0.9 ) -0.3 A
Maths - 21 0.9 ;> 37 | A ] -05 [ A 01 | A4

- All academies were above the government’s floor measure, and there is a general rising trend of
. attainment and progress. An increasing number of academles were close to at or above natlonal
‘averages in individual subjects ' .
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- Hastings Academies Trust (formerly University of Brighton Academies Trust)

Key Stage 1
In the phonics screening check, academies improved or marntalned the proportlon of puplls who -

reached the expected standard at the end of Year 1:

National Blackthorns Desmond Holmbush Lindfield Pound Hill
(2017). - . | Anderson - -
8‘1 - 87 - 83 ‘ 73 96 74

There is a rising trend of |mprovement in the percentage of puplls who reached the expected
standard in reading, writing and maths by the end of key stage 1:

National Blackthorns Desmond . Holmbush Lindfield | Pound Hill
. (2017) . 3 Anderson ] - ]
Reading 1 755 ) 83 61 - 72 87 86
Writing -~ |~ .68.2. . 83 52 72 - - 74 67
Maths | =751 " 90 61 69 86 76

- Early Years Foundation Stage -
The proportion of pupils who reached a Good Ievel of Development (GLD) in the Early Years

Foundation Stage was above the natlonal average in all academies; EYFS is a strength in the

trust: t
[National % Blackthorns Desmond Holmbush Lindfield Pound Hill
- (2017) : Anderson ‘ : , ' :

S A0 ] 83 1. 74 76 ' 74 .70

Pupil/student recruitment
In relation to the recruitment Reception Year puplls to the Trust's academies (for-September 2017

entry), the number of applications received from parents increased on 2016 numbers, as have first
choice preferences. All primary/infant academies are oversubscribed, with waiting_lists.
Recruitment of Year 7 students at The Burgess Hill Academy also lncreased as did first chonce

preferences

Key Employment Performance Indlcators
The Trustees recognise that the Trust has a broad base of activities and the quality of staff and line

managers are critical to its success. The Trust thérefore maintains effective recruitment and
development poI|C|es to ensure rigorous recruitment and performance monitoring processes and
procedures are in place to provide employees with opportunltles and support for personal

development

High quallty Newly Qualified Teachers are recruited from a range of Initial Teacher Tramlng
provnders in particular the University of Bnghton

The Trust is strongly commltted to provudlng high quality professmnal and career development _
opportunities for its staff, and a'range of cross-Trust professional development programmes were
offered to staff in academies during 2016/17 in order to further develop their skills and expertise.
They included a bespoke leadership programme for new and aspiring middle leaders (eg heads of
subject or heads of key stages); and formal recognition for a group of outstanding teachers as the
trust s ‘Lead Practltroners who will lead coaching and support for other teachers. :

Equalltaes, dwersrty and disability are areas of great mportance to the Trust. It is fundamental that
people are treated fairly and with respect and dignity. The Trust will not tolerate any discrimination,
~ victimisation or harassment on the grounds of age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and

- . civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex or sexual orientation.

A Union Recognition Agreement has continued to be in place all year which establishes a

framework for liaison with staff and union representatives. In line with this agreement, both local
and Trust Joint Consultative Committee (JCC) meetings took place during the year. A Staff Welfare
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; HaStings Academies Trust (formerly University of Brighton Academies Trust)

programme has been in place throughout the year provrdmg a comprehensuve support and
counsellrng service for all members of staff.

Key Financial Performance Indicators ' :
" All of the academies in the Trust achieved their operatlonal targets within the budgets agreed at
- the start of the year : ,

. With six academies now in the Trust, a number of flnancial'lndit:atcrs will be used in the future to
. assist Trustees in managing the Trust'’s financial affalrs to ensure efficient operation, liquidity and.
effective use of resource.

The ratio of staff related expenditure to income was 75 74% (75 18% in 2015/1 6) WhICh was wrthrn
the defined range (70 -80%). :

Going Concern '

After making approprlate enquiries, the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectatron that the

Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For

~ this reason it continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.
Further details regarding the adoptron of the going concern basis can be found rn the Statement of

Accountmg Policies. ‘

‘Financial Revnew .

Financial Position

During the year grant income of £10.905 mllllon (2015/16 18 month period: £6.256 million) was
recerved for the achlevement of the academies' educatronal aims and objectives.

Included wrthln grant income, Pupil Premtum payments amountmg to £0.295m (2015/16: £0 190
million) have been directly applied to the provision of additional support for disadvantaged pupils.
This support has been tailored to the.individual educational, emotional-and developmental needs of
these pupils. An additional sum of £11k (2015/16: Nil) for Year 7 students’ literacy and numeracy

- catch up premium funding to support students who did not achieve the expected standard in

- reading and maths at the end of key stage 2 (KS2).

~ Additional funds of £149k (2015/16: £18k) have been generated from the |ett|ng of academy
facrlltres for educational and community use. A

.The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) deficit stands at £1. 667mrtl|on Of this £0.569

- million is the liability that transferred to the trust during the year when the two additional academies
converted. Pension contributions for 2016/17 are all fully included in the agreed budgets for staffing
and this liability does not create an additional cash burden. Parliament has agreed to a guarantee
that, in the event of academy closure, outstanding LGPS liabilities will be met by the Department
for Education. The guarantee came mto force on 18 July 2013.

Reserves Pollcy '

Academies are funded on a monthly basis by Department for Education (DfE) grants plus

- sponsorship from the University of Brighton and income fairly matches expendrture ‘with around
84. 33% belng spent on teaching and other stafflng costs '

The Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) previously set limits on the amount of the
General Annual Grant (GAG) that could be carried forward from one year to the next. With effect
from 2012, these limits were removed so that academy trusts have the freedom to.keep money
aside for when it is needed most and to build up reserves, for example for long term capital
projects. The Trust developed a reserves policy during 2016/17 t to ensure that sufficient funds are
accumulated to enable school buildings to.be maintained and equipment and ICT assets renewed
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- Hastings Academies Trust (formerly University of Brighton Academies Trust)

when reqwred in the foreseeable future, as well ensuring that there are additional funds for school
lmprovement actrvrty and a general reserve to cover any cash flow requrrements :

Maintaining a Ievel of reserves is. essentlal as the academies have no recourse to any srgnuﬂcant
income streams other than DfE annual revenue and Condition lmprovement Funding. Annual
devolved capital funding is now very small at £11.25-per pupll for primary academres and £16.88

for secondary academies.

- Accounting for the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) means the accounts- recognlse a
- significant pension fund deficit within restricted funds, but this does not mean there is an immediate
liability for this amount, rather it reflects the potential for increases in employer pension '

contributions in future years.

'Investment Policy '
The Trust held no investments during the year. An investment pollcy has been developed and

approved. -

" Principal Risks and Uncertalntres '
The Board of Trustees is of the view that there is an ongoing process for ldentlfylng evaluating and

managing the Trust's sngnlflcant risks.. The Board of Trustees is responsible for the Trust's system
. of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness. Such a system is designed to manage rather
than to eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable
_ assurance against material misstatement or loss. The Trust has developed comprehensive
financial and risk management policies which are in accordance with the recommendations laid
down in the Academies Financial Handbook issued by the Educatlon and Skllls Fundlng Agency -

and in line with recognised good practlce

The Trust's Resources and Audit Committee ensures that the Trust’s operations and activities are
underpinned by sound internal financial control and risk management arrangements.

The Trust is concerned to maintain and develop the academies within the grant funding available
to them and has therefore established a process of settmg annual budgets and operatmg a system

of budget monitoring and control.

A key risk relates to the reduction in government funding in current and future years, for example,

in relation to the'Education Services Grant and pressures on funding for Nursery provision. The

Trust's cost base is being kept under review to ensure it can deal with variations, and strategies for

increasing non-government funding are being pursued, for example, re nursery provision, lettings

~ etc. Pay related increases outside of the Trust’s control, such as those related to pension and
National Insurance ‘contributions pose-a risk to the Trust and careful management of budgets will

be reqwred to ensure that funding focuses on supportlng the Trust s key prlontles ,

The Trust's prrmary/mfant pupil recrwtment is strong, wrth academies popular and oversubscribed.
A comprehensive marketing strategy has been developed to mcrease the number of students at its

secondary academy, The Burgess Hill Academy

Failure to secure or retain effective leadership and management as well as potential threats to the
quality of teaching remain key risks. The Trust has developed and implemented a leadership
strategy which includes succession planning, as well as a peer review framework, alongside

. Professional Partner input and a framework for continuing professional development to a|d

retentlon and mitigate these risks.

The potential lack of success to gain capital fundlng as a result of annual bids for government

Condition Improvement Funding for specific projects could compromise the ability to provide good
quality learning and teaching and may not result in funding for large building replacement projects.
- The Trust has been successful in gaining funding for one of its primary academies in-2016/17 (for
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roof replacement and roof lights); however the application for funding for its secondary academy

- has not been successful to date. The Trust has a framework of Planned Preventative Maintenance
to ensure effective maintenance of the estate.

In recognition of the need for effective and cost efficient finance to deliver improved decision
making, during 2016/17 an external review of the Trust's financial management arrangements and
" procedures was commissioned. A series of recommendations for improvement are now- being
taken forward as part of.a comprehensnve change management programme. :

The Trust's safeguarding policy and related checks and procedures mitigate any potentlal risk ofa
serious safeguarding incident. ‘

o Plans for Future P_eriods

The Trust has set ambitious targets for the academic attainment and progress of pupils/students

attending the academies. These targets are measured against key indicators. In addition,

improvement plans have been put in place to drive school improverment across the Trust. The

- Trust’s Strategic Improvement Group, led by the Director of School Improvement, co-ordinates all
school improvement activities across the Trust, with a key priority to increase internal capacity and

expertise in support of school to school improvement. )

Key priorities for improvement in the Trust's secondary academy during 2017/18 are to improve
student progress and to address consistency of performance across the curriculum. The key
priority for improvement in the Trust's primary academies during 2017/18 is to increase the
percentage of pupils who reach the expected standard in reading, writing and maths combined at
Key Stage 2. Central to achieving these prlonties is to continue to rmprove the quality of teaching
.and learning for all students/pupils .

14
The: delivery of the aforementioned change management programme to enhance the Trust’s:
financial management arrangements and procedures will be a key priority for the forthcoming year,
as will be the development of a Medlum Term Financial Plan, taking.account of the outcomes of
the National Funding Formula.

The overarching objective of financial management of the Trust will continue to be to achieve a
sound financial position and to operate within the grant funding provided by the Department for
Education.-

.~ The redevelopment of the Trust's values, vision and mission undertaken in 2016/17 provides the
basis for the development of a new strategic business plan, which is intended to support the
achievement of an agreed set of overarching objectives for the next flve years by translating the
vision into strategy and then into action.

The recruitment and retention of high quality staff are key to achieving these academic targets and
plans, and it is the intention to develop a comprehensive recruitmeént and retention strategy during . -
2017/18. The Trust will continue to implement its Leadership and Professional Development
Strategy which supports colleagues at all levels in their career development and facilitates
succession planning and talent spotting across the Trust. In support of the recruitment of new
teachers, the Trust will continue to work with its sponsors, the University of Brighton.

Auditor

Insofar as the Trustees are aware:
e There is no relevant audit information of which the Trust s auditor IS unaware and

e The Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that

information.
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: Durlng the year Wilkins Kennedy were appomted as the audltors of the Trust

-A resolution proposmg that Wllklns Kennedy LLP be reappornted as audltor of the charitable
company will be put to the members. A :

The trustees’ report lncorporatlng a strategic report was approved by order of the Board of
'Trustees as the Company Directors on 14 December 2017 and signed on the Board s behalf by

Professor Christ pher Pole = . .DrJohn Smlth
_ Chalr . . . Interim C_hlef Executive and Accounting Officer
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Governance Statement for the year ended 31 August 2017

: Scope of Responsublllty :

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that the Hastings
Academies Trust (formerly University of Brighton Academies Trust) has an effective and
“appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide
only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Chief Executive, as
‘Accounting Officer, for ensuring financial controls conform to the requirements of both propriety
and good financial management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities’

. assigned to it in the funding agreement between the Hastings Academies Trust (formerly UnlverS|ty
" of Brighton Academies Trust) and the Secretary of State for Education. The Chiéf Executive is also
responsible for reportlng to the Board of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in

- internal control.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Drrectors Report

and in the Statement of Trustees' responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has formally met six

times during the 2016/17 year. Attendance durlng the year at meetlngs of the Board of Trustees
was as foIIows ’

Trustee Meetings attended - | Out of a possible
Michael Brand (resigned 21/7/17) 4 _ - 6 )
Elizabeth Davis (resigned 4/11/16) 1 4 ' 1
Jill Elizabeth Gray 6 - 6
Paul Griffiths (Chief Executrve ‘and 2. ' ‘ 3
Accounting Officer) (resrgned 31/12/16)
Lorraine Harrison

Christopher Kirkness (appomted
7/11/16) -

Kevin Mannall (resigned 18/1/17)
Professor Christopher Pole (Chair)
Jacgueline Reid

Dr John Smith (Interim Chief Executive
and Accounting Offlcer) (appointed
1/1/17)

Janey Walker 6 ' 6

[N o]
(4[]

wWlh|O|W

During the 2016/17 year, the Trustees of the Hastings Academies Trust (formerly University of
Brighton Academies Trust) and the University of Brighton Academies Trust (formerly Hastings
Academies Trust) resolved to merge to become a single multi academy trust. This was effected by
the academies comprising the Hastings Academies Trust (formerly University of Brighton

~ Academies Trust) transferring to the University of Brighton Academies Trust (formerly Hastings
Academies Trust) with effect from 1/9/17. The names of the two trusts swapped on the same date.

Consequently, with effect from 1/9/17, there are no academies within the Trust and in due course,
(and following.a period of three months of dormancy), the Hastings Academies Trust (formerly
University of Brighton Academies Trust) will be struck off as a company. Several of the Trustees
joined the Board of Trustees of the University of Brighton Academles Trust (formerly Hastings
Academles Trust) on 1/9/17. :

The Resources and Audit Committee is a sub-committee of the Board of Trustees. Its purpose
from a resources perspectrve is to assnst the decision making of the- Board of Trustees, by enabling
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more detailed consideration to be.given to the best means of fulfilling the Board of Trustees'

responsibility to ensure sound management of each academy's finance and resources, including

proper planning, monitoring and probity. It also makes appropriate comments and A

recommendations on such matters to the Board of Trustees on a regular basis and to refer major .

issues to a Board of Trustees meeting for ratification. The committee’s purpose from an audit

- perspective is to ensure that the operation of the Trust is underpinned by sound internal financial

" control and risk management arrangements. The Resources and Audit Commlttee met five times
during 2016/17 Attendance at meetlngs in the year was as follows: :

‘Trustee - _ - 4 Meetings attended Outbf»a'possible
Jill Elizabeth Gray (Chair) - : 5 : 5 - ‘
Paul Griffiths (for Resources items) 1 '. , ' 2

1 (Chief Executive and Accounting Officer)
(resigned 31/12/16)

| Christopher Kirkness (appomted 5 , 5
7/11/16) - R
Dr John Smith (for Resources |tems) 3 ' 3

Interim Chief Executive and Accounting
Officer) (appointed 1/1/17) .

' Re'view.of Value for Mqhey'

As Accounting Officer the Chief Executive has responsibility for ensuring that the Trust delivers
good value in the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for
money refers to the educational and wider societal outcomes ach|eved in return for taxpayer
resources received. :

The Accountmg Officer considers how the Trust's use of resources has provided good value for.
money during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money
can be improved, including the use of benchmarking data where available. The. Accountlng Officer
for the Trust has dellvered improved value for money during the year by:

. Undertaking the merger of the University of Brighton Academies Trust and the Hastings
Academies Trust with effect from 1/9/17 (both trusts are led by the same sponsor, the
University of Brighton; there are existing shared management and central suppor‘t'services and
a shared school improvement strategy). There are a number of benefits of merglng ‘the two
.trusts; which include: (i) the opportunity to collaboratively develop a clear vision and mission for
the trusts; (i) a more efficient governance model (which avoids duplicate Boards of Directors "
and Sub-Committees); (iii) reduced statutory reporting requirements (including annual
accounts, ESFA returns and Companies House returns); (iv) the establishment of a single
central management budget will reduce the need for inter-trust financial processing and
preparation of separate budgets; and provide more opportunity for financial investments; (v)

‘increased purchasing power; and a reduction in the number of individual contracts, thereby
. increasing value for money; (vi) the opportunity to develop a-more coherent marketing and
communications strategy (internal and external); (vii) the opportunity to free capacity of existing
“members of staff to focus on their core responsibilities and take forward other areas of work
essential to future developments and (vul) max1m|sat|on of school |mprovement capacity
across the trusts.

e Relatedly, undertakmg a review of the two trusts’ governance arrangements, to be.
implemented from 1/9/17, which will realise a number of benefits, including: (i) the opportunity
to minimise and remove dupllcatlon (and thereby free capacity) between governance and the -

- executive, and between the different levels of governance; (ii) provision of greateér clarity about
roles and responsibilities; (iii) removal of the dual accountability of principals; (iv) reduced
complexity of the"governance structure, which in turn facilities more effective / decisive / rapid
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decision making; and (v) the opportunlty to strengthen and improve links with local
communltles .

‘. ,Providing opportunities for the Trust's most senior leaders to impact on improvements in other
~ Trust academies; for example, the Principal of Blackthorns Community Primary. Academy has
provided leadership support to Desmond Anderson Primary Academy. This has provided
- opportunities for sharing good practice and staff expert|se promotlng consistency and
establishing robust systems and protocols.

o: Continuing to maximise links with the Trust's lead sponsor the Umversuty of Brighton. This has
included the provision of specialist financial and legal advice, as well as supporting a range of
educatlonal |n|t|at1ves such as cross-Trust contlnumg professnonal development activities.

The Purpose of the System of Internal Control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to
eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can therefore only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on
. an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise risks to the achievement of Trust policies,
aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should
they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of
internal control has been in place in the Trust for the year to 31 August 2017 and up to the date of
approval of the annual report and financial statements

Capactty to Handle Risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Trust is exposed together with the
operating, financial and comphance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks.
The Board of Trustees is of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the Trust's significant risks that has been in place for the year ending 31
August 2017 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and fmanmal statements This
process is regularly reviewed by the Board of. Trustees. : :

The Risk and Control Framework

" The Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management
information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of
delegation and accountability. In particular, it includes: - .

¢ Comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and. perlodlc

- financial reports which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees

e Regular reviews by the Resources and Audit Committee of reports which indicate fmancual
performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and
expenditure programmes
Setting targets to measure financial and other performance
Clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital mvestment) gundellnes
Delegation of authority-and segregation of duties
‘Identification.and management of risks

The Board of Trustees has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and has
appointed East Sussex County Council to provide intérnal audit support. This role includes giving
advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on the Trust’s financial systems. The
Audit & Resources Committee received reports on the operation of the systems of control from the
internal auditors during the financial year; for example, a report of an audit of the Accounts -
Receivable System was received and considered in autumn 2016. As a result of this work the
auditor was able to provide minimal assurance over the key controls i in‘place within the accounts
receivable system. Although the audit did show some good practice at academies across the
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‘Trust, particularly where academies had made.good use of online payments systems, there were -
still a number of issues that needed to be resolved to ensure robust controls are in place to protect
-income received and ensure income is accurately recorded in the financial accounts. -An action
plan has been put in place to ensure that these |mprovements are made. The internal audlt

servrce was dellvered to the specmcatlon provided.

Durmg 2016/17 Delontte was commnssroned to undertake a review of the Trust's flnancral
management arrangements-and procedures; the recommendations arising from this are now being
implemented in a comprehensive change management project (18 months). A new single central
bank account has been established, and the Trust's finance system has been updated: this will
improve the ‘quality and timeliness of financial monitoring information to inform strategic decisions.

Review of Efféctiveness

As Accountmg Offlcer the Chief Executive has responsublllty for revrewnng the effectlveness of the’
-system of internal control. During the year in question the revrew has been mformed by:
¢ The work of the internal auditor :
e The work of the external auditor o
e The work of the executive managers within the Trust who have responsnblllty for the
development and maintenance of the internal control framework.

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the

system of internal control by the Resources and Audit Committee and a plan to: address :
weaknesses and ensure contmuous improvement of the system isin place

Appr.oved by 6rder of the Board of Trustees on 14 December 2017 and signed on its béhalf by:-

' Professor Christopher Pole
Chair :
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Statement on Regulanty, Proprlety and Compllance for the
year ended 31 August 2017

~As Accounting Officer of the Hastings Academies Trust (formerly University of Brighton Academies
Trust) | have considered my responsibility to notify the Board of Trustees and the Education-and

- Skills Funding Agency of material irregularity,.impropriety and non-compliance with ESFA terms
and conditions of funding, under the funding agreement in place between the Hastings Academies
Trust (formerly University of Brighton Academies Trust) and the Secretary of State for Education. -
As part of my consideration | have had due regard to the requlrements of the Academies Fmanmal ’
Handbook

"1 confirm that | and the Board of Trustees are able to idenltify any material irfegular or improper use
of funds by the Trust, or material hon-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under
the Trust's fundlng agreement and the Academles Financial Handbook

| conflrm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or fundlng non- compllance have
. 'been discovered to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement; these will
be notified to the Board of Trustees and ESFA.

Dr J Smith
Intenm Accountlng Off icer
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| Statement of Trustees ResponS|b|l|t|es for the year ended
31 August 2017

‘The Trustees (who act as trustees for the Hastings Academies Trust [formerly University of .

- Brighton Academies Trust] and are also the directors of the Hastings Academies Trust [formerly
University of Brighton Academies Trust] for the purposes of company law) are responsible for
preparing the Trustees' report and the financial statements in accordance with the Annual
Accounts Requirements issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom'
Accounting Standards: (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and appllcable
law and regulatlons

Company Iaw reqwres the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under .
company law the Trustees muist not approve the financial statements unless they.are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Trust and.of its incoming resources and
application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these

~ financial statements the Trustees are gequnred to:.

Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
Observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP;
.Make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
State whether applicable UK Accolinting Standards have been foliowed, subject to any matenal
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and
e Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is mappropnate to
presume that the Charitable Company will continue in business.

o The Trustees are responsnble for keeping adequate accountmg records that are sufficient to show

and explain the charitable company transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the Trust and enable them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Trust and hence for taking reasonable steps for the preventlon and detection of fraud and other
|rregular|t|es : : :

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the Trust applies -
financial and other controls, which conform to the requirements both of propriety and of good
financial management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from the ESFA/DfE
. have been applied for the purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial

- information included on the Charitable Company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom
.governing the preparation and dlssemlnatlon of financial statements may differ from Ieglslatlon in
other jurisdictions. :

Approved by order of the Bo_ard of Trustees on.14 December 2017 and signed on 'its behaif by:..

VProfessor Chnstopher Pole . ' Dr John Smith
Chair _ ‘ " Interim Chief Executlve and Accountlng Offlcer
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- 'Independent Audltors Report to the Members of Hastings
~ Academies Trust (formerly UnlverS|ty of Brlghton Academies
Trust)

Opinion

We have audnted the financial statements of Hastmgs Academles Trust (formerly University of
Brighton Academies Trust) (the 'Academy Trust') for the year ended 31 August 2017 which
comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Cash Flows
-and the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and
United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial’
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK-and Republic of Ireland' (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice), the Charities SORP 2015 and the Academles Accounts Direction
2016 to 2017 issued by the Education and Skills Fundlng Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the state of the Academy Trust's affairs as at 31 August 2017

~and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including |ts income and
expenditure, for the year then ended,;

. e have been properly prepared in accordance with Umted ngdom Generally Accepted
- Accounting Practice;

« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and

¢ have been prepared in accordance with'the’ Charltles SORP 2015 and the Academies
Accounts Direction 2016 to 2017. ,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Internatlonal Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK))
and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
‘Auditor’'s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements' section of our report. We are
independent of the academy trust in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
~our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical-Standard, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We belleve that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothlng to report in respect of the: foIIowmg matters in relatlon to which the ISAs (UK)
: requnre us to report to you where:

o the trustees' use of the going concern basis of accountmg in the preparatlon of the fmancual
_statements is not appropriate; or

o the Directors (trustees) have not disclosed in the f nancial statements any |dent|f|ed

' material uncertainties that may, cast significant doubt about the academy trust’s ability to

continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve
months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Other mformatlon e

The Dlrectors (trustees) are responsible for.the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.- Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and,
except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of
- assurance conclusion thereon. :
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to détermine whether there is a material misstatement in the
financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are

required to report that fact.
We have nothihg to report in this regard.
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the'Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of our audit:
@ the information given in the Trustees' Report including the incorporated strategic report for
‘ the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the

financial statements; and . : .
« the Trustees' Report including the incorporated strategic report has been prepared in

accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are requin:ed to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the academy trust and its envirénment obtained
in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' Report,

including the incorporated strategic report. N

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies
Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion: . .

& adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequaté for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or . '
the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

K)

v @

Responsibilities of Directors (trustees)

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities, the Directors (trustees) are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a
true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Directors (trustees) determine is necessary

" to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error. .

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors (trustees) are responsible for assessing the
academy trust's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors (trustees) :
either intend to liquidate the Academy Trust, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. o

_Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the accounts

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered

Page 23 of 56




e =

Hastings Academies Trust (formerly University. of Brighton Academies Trust)

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

_ A further description-ofa.our respbnsibi!ities for the atidit of the financia! statements is located on the

Financial Reporting Council’s website at: http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This
description forms part of our auditor's report. . .

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Academy Trust's members, as a body, in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the Academy Trust's members those matters we are required to state to them in an
auditors’ report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept
or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Academy Trust and the Academy Trust's ~ °

" members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. ... .

h

LD i . mss  ICon r\.szol\j L,LP

WMichelie Wilkés.(Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behaif of Wilkins Kennedy LLP

- Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountants . Wilkins Kennedy LLP
, . Greytown House
.221-227 High Street
Orpington -
Kent
BR6 ONZ

Page 24 of 55



¢

Hastings Academies Trust (formerly University of Brighton Academies Trust)

Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Repon on
Regularity to Hastings Academies Trust (formerly University
of Brighton Academles Trust) and the Education and Skills

Funding Agency

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 26 May 2017 and further to the
requirements of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies
Accounts Direction 2016 to 2017, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance -
about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received by Hastings Academies Trust
(formerly University of Brighton Academies Trust) during the period 1 September 2016 to 31
August 2017 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial
transactions conform to the authorities which govern them. : ,

1

This report is made solely to Hastings Academies Trust (formerly University of Brighton Academies
Trust) and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter. Our work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the Hastings Academies Trust (formerly University of Brighton
Academies Trust) and ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than Hastings Academies Trust (formerly University of Brighton Academies Trust)
and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed. ‘

¢

Respective responsibilities of Hastings Academies Trust (formerly University of Brighton
Academies Trust)'s accounting officer and the reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Hastings Academies Trust
(formerly University of Brighton Academies Trust)'s funding agreement with the Secretary of State

for Education dated 20 March 2015 and the Academies Financial Handbook, extant from 1

September 2016, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the
purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which

govern them.

'Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s

ethical guidance, and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our
engagement letter and the requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2016 to 2017. We
report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests
that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1
September 2016 to 31 August 2017 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or
that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach :
We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2016 to

2017 issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our
engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform Such procedures as to obtain
information and explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropnate evidence to express

a negatlve conclusion on regularlty

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance
engagement and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become
aware of all significant matters that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement.

Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.
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material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of-our responsibilities for the audit of the financia! statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council’'s website at: http://www.frc.org. uk/audltorsresponsvblh'ues This
description forms part of our audltor s report

Use of our report
This report is made solely to the Academy Trust's members, as a body, in ébcordance with

Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the Academy Trust's members those matters we are required to state to them in an

' auditors' report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept
-or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Academy Trust and the Academy Trust's

members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have »tor_med«-.‘ -

LD «.uc\.q:, GC,Q/\r\.sz.ob L

Michelle Wilkes (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Wilkins Kennedy LLP

Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountants : ' Wilkins Kennedy LLP

Greytown House
221-227 High Street
Orpington

Kent

BR6 ONZ
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Statement of Fi_héncial Activities for the year ended 31 AugUst 2017
" Including Income and Expenditure Account - o o '

Income and endowments from:

* Donations and capital grants
Donations - transfer from local .
authority on conversion .

Charitable activities:

- - Funding for educational operations
- Funding for teaching school

Other trading activities

Investments . '

Total income and endowments
Expenditure on:

Charitable activities:
. - Educational operations

- Teaching School

Total exbénditure

.Net income/(expenditure)

Transfers between funds

‘Other recoghised gains and losses
Actuarial-gains/(losses) on defined
benefit pension schemes

Net movem'ént.in funds.

Reconciliation of funds
Total funds.brought forward

Total funds carried forward

‘Unrestricted

. Funds
Notes © £'000
3. .82
26 189
4 .
25 -
5 362
6 1
634
8 . 206
25 .
7 206
428

(497) -

200 -
(69)
- 250
181

—_—

. Pag.e 27 of 56-

Restricted funds:

. Total Total
General Fixed asset 2017 2016
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
- a1 493 1,034
L (569) 21,341 120,961 13,107
10,818 ; 10,818 . 6,656
487 . - 487 -
192 - 554 2
- ; 1 1
10,928 21,945 133,314 120,820
12,251 168 12,625 7,082
487 ; 487 ;
12,738 168 - 13112 7,982
(1,810) 21,584 . 20,202 12,838
902 (405) - ;
414 . 414 (306)
494) 21,179 20,616 12,532
(1,173) 13,455 12,532 -
(1667) 34,634 33,148 12,532




,Hastings'Academies Trust '(formerly University of Brighton Academies Trust)

Statement of Fmancnal Activities for the year ended 31 August 2017 (contlnued)
Including Income and Expendlture Account

'Cbmparative information S ' Urirestﬁcted Restricted funds: Total

ended 31 August 2016 T 'Funds ~ General  Fixed asset 2016
L ) ' Notes © T £'000 " £'000 £'000 . £'000
Income and endowments from: . ' -
‘Donations and capital grants - ' 3 . 78 . 956 - 1,034
Donations - transfer from local authorlty on 26 . - 325 ' (763) . 13,535 13,107
conversion : :

Charitable activities: E ) . A o
31 6,625 - 6,656

" - Funding for educatlonavl operatlons 4 -
Other trading activities ' -5 _ 22 - - 22
_Investments L g 6 A - 1 - 1
“Total income and endowments : - 456 " 6,829 13,535 20,820
Expenditure on:
Charitable activities: I T ' - _
- Educational operations ' 8 - 139 - 7,763 _ 80 . 7,982
Total expenditure : B 139 7,763 . 80 7,982
Net income/(expenditure) ' . 317 . (934) 13455 12,838
_ Transfers between funds h . : ' (67) . 67 - .
Other recognised gains and losses o . .
Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension 20 - (306). - - (306)
schemes’ ‘
Net movement in funds _ C. 250 (1,173) * - 13,455 . 12,532
Reconciliation of funds S A o .
Total funds brought forward ’ ‘ ) . - . - - . _
Total funds carried forward '. ' 250 © (1.173) 13,455 = 12,532
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Hastings Academies Trust (formerly University of Brighton Academies Trust)

‘Balance sheet as at 31 August 2017

Fixed assets
""Tangible assets

Current assets
Stocks -
Debtors -
. Cash at bank and in hand

Current’ |Iabl|ItIeS
Creditors: amounts falllng due wuthln one
year

Net current assets

. Net assets excluding pension Iiability_ '

" Defined benefit penéionliability
Net assets A

. Funds of the academy trust:
Restricted funds ‘

- Fixed asset funds

. - Pension reserve

Total restricted funds ‘

Unrestricted income funds

Total funds

v Netes

‘12

13
14

15

20

18 .

18

£'000

489
1,694

2,186

(z,oosj

2017

£'000

| 34,634

181

34,815

(1,667)

33,148

34,634

(1,667)

32,967

181

133,148

2016
£'000 -

388 -

1,315

1,703

(1,453)

£'000

13,455

250

13,705

(1173)

112,532

13,455
(1,173) -

12,282

250

12,532

The financial statements set out on pages 27 to 55 were approved by the board of trustees and authonsed fori issue
on 14 December 2017 and are signed on its behaif by: .

>Professor Chn opher Pole
Chair '

Dr John Smlth : )
Intenm Chlef Executlve and Accountmg Off‘cer '
Company Number 09466013
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Héstings Academies Trust (formerly University of Brighton Academies Trust)

. Statément of ACas'h’F.Iows'fo‘r.the yéar ended 3‘1 Augus’i 2017

2017

Notes : £'000 © £'000
Cash flows from operating activities ' _
Net cash provided by (used in) operating X -(216)
activities . ) o
Cash funds transferred on conversion 189
(27) -
Cash flows from investing activities ,
~ Dividends, interest and rents from investments 1
Capital grants from DfE and ESFA , 411
- Payments to acquire tangible fixed assets 6 -
406
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the 379
reporting period '
' Cash'and cash eduivalents at1 Septembef 2016 1,315
Cash‘ and cash équivalenfs at 31 Aixgust ‘2017 1,694 - '
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©£'000

2016

178

£'000 -
811
325

1,136

179.

. 1,315

1,315



AHastlngs Academles Trust (formerly Umversuty of Bnghton Academies Trust)

Notes to the accounts for the year ended 31 August 201 7

1

11

1.2

" Accounting policies

A summary of the principal accountlng policies adopted (which have been applied conS|stentIy, except where
noted) ]udgements and key sources of estimation uncertamty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation :

The financial statements of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable
in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of
Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their financial statements in accordance with the
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS
102)), the Academies Accounts Dlrectlon 2016 to 2017 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the
Companies Act 2006. -

Hastlngs Academies Trust (formerly Umversnty of Bnghton Academies Trust) meets the defi mtlon of a pubhc
benefit entity under FRS 102.

Gomg concern .

. The Directors (Trustees) assess wheéther the use of going concern is appropriate, ie whether there are any

material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the -

" charitable company to continue as a going concern. The trustees make this assessment in respect of a

1.3

1.4

period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and have
concluded that the academy trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the academy trust's ability to continue as a
going concern. Thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in prepanng the financial
statements.

Conversion to an academy trust : :

The conversion from a state maintained school to an academy trust involved the transfer of |dent|f abIe assets
and liabilities and the operation of the school for £nil consideration. The substance of the transfer is that of a
gift and it has been accounted for on that basis as set out below. .

The assets and liabilities transferred on conversion from Desmond Anderson Primary and The Burgess Hill
Academy to the academy trust have been valued at their fair value. The fair value has been derived based on
that of equivalent jtems. The amounts have been recognised under the appropriate balance sheet categories,
with a corresponding amount recognised in Donations — transfer from local authority on conversion in the
Statement of Financial Activities and analysed under unrestricted funds, restricted general funds and

" restricted fixed asset funds. Further details of the transaction are set out in note 26.

Income

"All incoming resources are recognlsed when the academy trust has entitlement to the funds, the recelpt is

probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

.- Grants recelvable

Grants are included in the statement of financial activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income
received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the

.balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is

not unconditional entitiement to the income and its recognition is deferred and. included in creditors as
deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income is -

received, the income is accrued

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the statement of financial activities in the period for which it is
receivable, and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.
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Hastings Academies Trust (formerly University of Brighton Academies ‘Trust)

Notes to the aCCounts for the year-ended 31 August 2017 (continued)

1.5

4Ca'p'ita| grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent amounts

of capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are
recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are.
expended .

-Sponsorship income

Sponsorship income provided to the academy trust which amounts to a donation is ‘recognised in the

“statement of financial activities in the period in which it is receivable (where there are no performance-related

condmons) where the recelpt is probable and |t can be measured reliably.

Donatlons
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance related conditions) where
the recelpt is probable and the amount can be rellably measured

' Other income

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the
academy trust has provided the goods or services.

Donated goods, facilities and services

" Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the expected

costs of sale. If it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in stock and ‘Income from
other trading activities'. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against ‘Income from other. trading
activities’ and the proceeds are recognised as ‘Income from other trading activities’. Where it is impractical to
fair value the items due to the volume of low value items they are not recognised in the financial statements .
until they are sold. This income. is recognised within ‘Income from other trading activities’.

- Donated fixed assets

Donated fixed assets are measured at fair value unless it is |mpract|ca| to measure this reliably, in whlch case v
the cost of the item to the donor is used. The gain is recognised as income from donations and a

" corresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and deprecnated over the useful

economic life in accordance with the academy trust's accountmg polrcues

Expendlture :

Expenditure is recognlsed once there is a. legal or constructive obllgatron to transfer economlc ‘benefitto a
third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits. will be required in settlement, and the amount of
the obligation can-be measured reliably.

Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and
shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a
single activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity
and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a
basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of tlme spent, and’

.depreciation charges are allocated on the portion of the asset's use.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

Exgendlture on raising funds

This includes all expenditure incurred by the academy trust to raise funds forits charrtable purposes and

* includes costs of all fundrarsrng activities events and non-charitable trading.
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Hastings Academies Trust'(forme_rly University of Brighton Acad»emieslTrust)

Notes to the accounts for the_year ended 31 August 2017 (continued)

1.6

Charitable actrvrtles

" These are costs incurred on the academy trust's educatronat operatrons including support costs and costs

reIatlng to the governance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable activities.

Governance costs ' :
These include the costs attributable to the academy trusts compliance with constrtutronal and statutory
requirements, including audit, strateglc management trustees' meetings and reimbursed expenses ‘

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation
Assets costing £5,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost net of
deprecratron and any provision for impairment.

Where tanglble fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or

“from the pnvate sector, they are includedin the balance sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected

useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding that require the continued
use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the statement of financial
activities and carried forward in the balance sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to
the restricted fixed asset fund in the statement of financial activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been
acquired with unrestncted funds deprecratnon on such assets is charged to the unrestncted fund.

Depreciation is provided on.all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates calculated to.write off
the cost of each asset on a[straight-line/reducing balance] basis over its expected useful Iife, as follows:

Land and buildings ' Burldmgs 125 years (Shorter of 125 years or Iength of lease), '
- Land is not deprecrated
Computer equrpment . 3-10years

Assets in the course of construction areincluded at cost. Deprecratron on these assets is not charged untll

- they are brought into use.

1.7

- 1.8

1.9

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed
assets and their recoverable amounts are recognrsed as impairments. Imparrment losses are recognised in
the statement of financial activities. .

Liabilities ’
Liabilities are recogmsed when there is an oblrgatron at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it
is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the settlement

~ can be estimated-reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy trust anticipates it will

pay to settle the debt or the amount it has recelved as advanced payments for the goods of servrces |t must
provide. . .

Leasing commltments

. Rentals payable under operatlng leases are charged agarnst income on a straight line basis over the period

of the lease.

Financial instruments’ ’ :
The academy trust only holds basic fi nancral instruments as defined in FRS 102. The fi nancral assets and

- financial liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement basrs are as follows.
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. Hastings Academies Trust (formerly University of Brighton Academies Trust)

Notes to the a_ccounts‘for the year ended 31 August 2017 (continued)

. Einancial assets

1.10

1:12

' Trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at amortlsed

cost. Prepayments are not fi nanual mstruments

Cash at bank-is classiﬁed as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Flnanmal liabilities

Trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at amortised cost.

Taxation and somal security are not included in the financial instruments disclosure defi nition.

Deferred incqme is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and
there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument.

Stock

Stock is valued at the lower of cost and net reallsable value Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling price less further costs to completion-and dlsposal Provision is made for obsolete and slow moving
stock. .

Taxation

The academy trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010
and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK -corporation tax purposes. Accordingly,
the academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within
categories covered by chapter 3 part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of
Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applled exclusuvely to charitable

‘purposes.

Pensions benefits

Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are prowded by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
(TPS') and the Local Government Pension Scheme ('LGPS'). These are defned benefit schemes and the
assets are held separately from those of the academy trust.

" The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so-as to spread the cost of pensions over .

employees' working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a-substantially level
percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government

~ Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. As stated in note 20,

the TPS is a multi-employer scheme and there is insufficient information available to use defined benefit
accounting. The TPS is therefore treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the
contributions are recogmsed in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the academy trust in
separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are
measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to
the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities.
The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The
amounts charged to operating surplus are the current service costs and the costs of scheme-introductions,
benefit changes, settiements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net
interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the statement of financial activities and -
comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets,
calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to
discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the .
actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and Iosses Actuarial galns and
losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.
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Hastings Academies Trust (fbrmerly University of Brighton Academies Trust)
Notes to the accounts for the year ended 31 August 2017 (continued)

- 1.13 Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the academy trust at.the discretion of the Directors (Trustees).

‘ Restncted fixed asset funds are resources whrch are to be applied to specific capltal purposes lmposed by
funders where the asset acqurred or created is held for a specnﬂc purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
" funder/donor and include grants from the Education and Skills Funding Agency/Department for Education.

2 Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

" Accounting estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
‘other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
- circumstances.

Critical_accountinq estimates and assumptions _

The academy trust-makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The résulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual resuits. The estimates and
assumptions that have a S|gn|ﬁcant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on-a number of
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions,
which are disclosed in note 20, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore a roll .

- forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2013
has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2017. Any differences between the
figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuanal valuatlon would impact on the carrymg
amount of the pensron liability. .

Cntucal areas of |udqement

Useful economic lives of tangible assets '

“:The annual depreciation charge for tangible assets is sensitive to changes in the estimated useful economic
Jlives and residual values of the assets. The useful economic lives and residual values are re-assessed -
annually. They are amended when necessary to reflect current estimates, based on technological
advancement, future investments, economic utilisation and.the physical condition of the assets. See note 12
for the carrying amount of the property plant and equrpment and note 1.6 for the useful economic lives for
each class of assets. .

Bad debts
Debtors are regularly reviewed for recoverabrllty, any debts which in the oplnlon of management are not

recoverable are provided for as a specrf ic bad debt. .
There are no key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncerta|nty at the

reporting date that have a significant risk of causmg a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year.
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Hastings Academies Trust (formerly UniVersity of Brighton Academies.Trust) _

Notes.to fhe acc'o'unt‘s for thé year ended 31 August 2017 (cohtihued)

‘3" Donations and capital grants

Unrestricted
' funds .

£'000

Capital grants ‘ ' : -

. Other donations. . - : Y -
© 82 .

4 Funding for the academy trust's educational operations

~ Unrestricted ‘

funds

DfE / ESFA grants S v
General annual grant (GAG) ; -
. Startup grants - . ) P -
Other DfE / ESFA grants e -

Other government grants |

Local authority grants -~ ° -

Special educational projects . _ .-

Other funds ‘ ‘
Other incoming resources. .. ’ ' . .-

Total funding e S o .

§  Other trading activities

funds
£'OQO

'Hire of facilites. . : S 150
Catering income ' . 161
Teaching School D _ -
Other income . : 51
362
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‘£'000

Unrestricted

'Restricted

funds

£'000

411

411

Restricted
funds
£'000

- 9,015
175

685

9,875

470

132

602

T 341

10,818

N

.R‘es'trict'ed
funds
€000

106 -

86

192

Total

2017

. £'000

411

82 .

. 493

‘Total

2017 ..

£'000

9,015

175 .
© e85

9,875

- 470
132

602

1341

- 10,818

Total
2017

£000 -

150
161

106
137

554

. Total
2016
£'000

178
- 856

- 1,034

- Total

2016 -
£000

© 5,159

100
927

6,186 .

124

124

346

6,656

Total
2016
£'000

22

22




HaStingé Academies Trust (formerly University of Brighton Acad;emie_s Trust)

~ Notes to the accounts for the year ended 31_'August 2017 (cbn‘tin'ued)’ ke

. 6. 'Invé_stmentincome o ' . _
C Unrestricted = Restricted - - Total .

funds funds o 2017 -
€000 . £000 . £000
Short term deposits ’ ‘ 1 : N
"7  Expenditure . : ,

I . - Staff Premises Other ' Total
costs & equipment - costs 2017
£'000 £'000 . £'000  £'000 -

Academy's educational operations : . . :

- Direct costs. - ' 7,565 167 357 . 8,089

- Allocated support costs . 2,279 . 1,126 1,131 " 4,536

Teaching School A ' o '

- Direct costs : . 244 : - 184 = . 428

- Allocated support costs 40 2 17 59

10,104 .~ 1295 . .1,689 13,112

Net incorhel(expenditure)iforthe year includes: » ' . } ‘ Co 2017
L ' o £'000

Fees payable to auditor for: ,

- Audit o ‘ : o _ .16

- Other services - ‘ . E : . o 3 -

Operating lease rentals s , T ‘63

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets a : o © 168

" Net interest on.defined benefit pension liability _ R o - 36

Central services
The academy trust has provided the following Cént(al services to its academies during the yéa'r: :

~ Human Resources
Financial Services
Estates Management ‘
Educational Support Services
Leadership and Governance

The-academy trust charges for these servicés on the following basis: -

. 5% of ESFA grant income excludjné pupil premiurh

-Page 37 of 56

Total
2016

- £'000

Total
2016
£'000 -

5,065
2,917

7,982

2016
£'000

19°

44
80



!

| Hastings Acédemies Trust (formerly University of Brig'ht'on Academies Trust)”

" Notes to the accounts for the year ended 31 AugUst' 2017 (‘c‘ontinued) _

7

Expenditure

The amodntslcharged during the year were as follows:

Biackthorns Primary Academy

" Holmbush Primary Academy

Lindfield Primary Academy .- -
Pound Hill infant Academy

" Central Services'

Desmond Anderson Primary
Academy

The Burgéess Hill Academy

Charitable activities

Direct costs - educational operaiions .

Direct costs - teaching school

Support costs - educational operations.

Support-costs ~ teaching school -

Unrestricted
funds
£'000

28

178.

206
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Restricted
funds
. £'000

8,061
428

4,358 -

59

12,906

Total .

2017
£000

8,089

428

4,536

59

13,112

. Total

£'000

50 .

44
96
55

49 -

242

536

: Total

2016
£'000

5,065

2,917

7,982




Hastings Academies Trust (formerly University of Brighton_Acé‘deniies Trust)

Notes to the accounts: for the year ended 31 August 2017 (continued)

8

Charitable activifies

.A'nalysisj of costs

Direct costs

Teaching and educational support staff costs

Staff development
Depreciation and amortisation

" . Educational supplies and services

Examination fees’

‘Educational consduitancy

Other direct costs-

Support costs
Support staff costs

.. Depreciation and amortisation
- Technology costs

Recruitment and support -
Maintenance of premises and equipmen

‘Cleaning . . :

Energy costs
Rent and rates

"Insurance

Security and transport
Catering :
Finance costs .

Other support costs
Governance costs

Teaching
School

-£'000 .

30 -

214

. Page 39 of 56

Educational

operations
£'000

7,494
71

167

186
50
76
45

8,089

2,278

. 270
- 57

668

116
132

95~

105

13

- 412
36
147

4,536

206

. Total
12017
. '£'000

7,524 .

285
167
- 186

260
45

8,617

2,318

272 -

57
670
116

132
- 95

105
412
36

159
206

4,595

50 -

Total

- 2016

£'000

4,353

80



9

‘Hastings Academies Trust (formerly University of Brighton Academies Trust)

. Notes to the accounts for the year ended 31 August 2017 (oont‘inuedr)

- Staff costs

2017 - . 2016

£000 £'000
Wages and salaries - S ‘ . B ' ] 6,633 . 4629
Social security costs g ) - o . 576 ©~ 263
Operating costs of defined benefit pensnon schemes ‘ : 1,529 114
Apprenticeship levy o , ' 10 -
‘Staffcosts R I . . 8748 5006
Supply staff costs - . ‘ ) - S - 900 496
Key Management staff R - , : : 85 o 174
Staff restructuring costs = . , L o : 109 ‘ -
Staff development and other staff costs S ' o 286 -
Total staff expenditure - o o .. 10128 5676

Staff numbers ) . . .
The average number of persons by headcount, employed by the academy trust during the year was as follows:

2017 2016

Number. - Number

Teachers ° - | ' ' o 260 - 68

Administration and support : . - o ' o .. 517 . 132
Management = = o T : . o100 . 8

787 208

Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excludmg employer pension costs) exceeded £60 000
was: .

2017 . 2016
Number ~ Number -
. £60,001-£70,000 . .. o . 9
£70,001-£80,000 : - 3. 1
£80,001-£90,000 1 )

Non Statutory / Non contractual staff severance payments ~ )
Included in staff restructuring costs are non-statutory/non-contractual severance payments totalling £109k
(2016: £Nil). Individually, the payments were: £26k £19k, £1 5k £14k, £13Kk, £12k £6k & £4k.

Key management personnel :

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the Dlrectors (Trustees) and the senior
management team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension
contributions) received by key management personnel for their services to the academy trust is paid by our
sponsor (refer to note 23 related party transactlons) was £85k (18 Month period to 31 August 2016 £174k).
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10 Trustees' remuneration and expenses
Trustees did not receive any payments, other than expenses from the Academy Trust in respect of their role
" as Trustees. During the year ended 31 August 2017 expenses totalling £277 (2016: £54) were relmbursed or
paid dlrect|y to 1 trustee (2016:2) -

11 Dlrectors (Trustees) and officers insurance - i -

" In accordance with normal commercial practice, the academy trust has purchased insurance to protect
Directors (Trustees) and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst
on academy trust business. The insurance provides cover up to £10,000,000 on any one claim: It is not

_possible to quantify the trustees' and officers' indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme.

12 Tangible fixed assets , - .
Land and Computer - . Total

buildings equipment .
£000 . £'000 £000.

Cost = ‘ A _ . : .
At1September2016 . : ' . 13535 - . 13,535
Transfer on conversion o . . 21,341 - 21,.341
Additions S - 4 - 6 6
At 31 August 2017 . » . ) 34876 . 6 34,882
' Depreciation S : - o ' Sy ' _
At 1 September 2016 ' ' L ‘ 80 . - 80
Charge for the year o : 167 N 168
At 31 August2017 L ~ o Y S 1 . 248
Net book value . . 7
- At'31 August 2017 o ' . 34,629 5 - 34634
At 31 August 2016 L B 13485 - | 13455

Land valued at £11,407k is included within land and buildings.and is not depreciated. "
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Notes to the accou‘ntsvf,or- the year ended 31 AUgust 2017 (’contin'ue'd)

13

14

15

16 -

Stocks

Catering stock

_ Debtors

: Tréde debtors

VAT recoverable
Other debtors
Prepayments and acerued income

Creditors: amounts falling due within _one_jear '

Trade creditors
Othertaxation and social security

- Other creditors . .

Accruals and deferred income

~
Deferred income

Deferred income is included within:
Creditors due within one year

' Deferred income at 1 September 2016 .

Released from previous years

' Amounts deferred in the year -

Deferred income at 31 August 2017

2017

£000 -

2017
£'000

27

134 .
- 250
78 .

489

. 2017

£'000

35
156
158

1,656

2,005.

2017
£'000

1,045

1660 .

(660)
1,045

L045

2016
£'000

2016

£'000

62
75
89

162

388

2016

£'000

12-

67

69
1,305

1,453

2016
£'000

660

660

660

‘At the Balance Sheet date the Trust was holdihg funds received in advance for UIFSM, Rates Rehef P}e

School Opening grants,; Sponsorship Capacity grant, Growth Fund High Needs top up Funding, Early Years

Advance and Reglonal grants for 2017118 academlc year.
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7

18

Financial instruments

- -Carrying amount of financial assets
'Debt instruments measured at amortised cost

Carrying amount of financial liabilities

Measured at amortised cost

Funds

. Restricted general funds
- General Annual Grant
. Start up grants.

Other DfE / ESFA grants
Other government grants
Teaching School

Other restricted funds

" Funds excluding pensions

Pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset funds

Transferred on conversion
DfE / ESFA capital grants
General fixed assets

Total restricted funds

‘ Unrestricted funds

General funds

Total fimds

Balance at

Income Expenditure

1 September
2016
£000 £'000
; > 9,015
- 175
; 685-
; 602
g 487
. 533
; - 11,497
(1,173) (569)
(1,173) 10,928
; 21,341
; 411
13,455 -
13,455 21,752
12282 32,680
250 . 634
12,532 33314
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£'000

(9,917)
(175)
(685)
(602)
(487)
(533) .

(12,399)
(339)

(12,738)

(.168)A

(168)

(12,906)

(206)

(13,112)

2017

. £'000

411

960 .

Gains,
losses and
" transfers

£'000

902

902
414,

1,316

(21,341)

@11y

21,347

(405)

AN

(497).

414

Notes to the accounts for the year endéd 31 August 2017 (continued) .

2016
£'000

226

793

Balance at

31 August .
2017
£'000

34,634

34,634

32,967

181

33,148




Hastings 'Ac_ademies Trust (formerly University of Brighton Academies Trust)

Notes to the accounts for the year ended 31 August 2017 (continued)

18

Funds : :
The specrf ic purposes for WhICh the funds are to be applied are as follows

‘Restricted General Fu‘nds:

General Annual Grant - Income from the ESFA which Is’ to be used for the normal runnrng costs of the
Academy includlng education and support costs.

Start up -grants - includes start up grants received from the ESFA.

Other DfE / ESFA grants - mciudes grants from the ESFA/ DfE in relation to rates relief pupil premrum
UIFRSand Year 7 catch up.

Other government grants- rncludes grants from LEA mainly for Early Years Education Entrtlement (EYEE) for

* Nursery and Hrgh needs funding to fund further support for students with additional needs.

Restricted Fixed Asset Funds:—

DfE/ESFA caprtal grants - represents amounts recerved from the ESFA mcludrng Devolved formula capital

(DFC) grant and MAT School Condition Allocation (SCA). DFC funding can be used for improvements and:

-repairs to buildings and other facilities, including ICT or repairs, refurbishment and minor works in accordance

with priorities set by the academies. SCA is specifically.to ensure that our academy buildings are kept in good
condition and that all children can learn in a safe and effectlve envrronment

Transferred on ‘conversions - this represents the buildings and equrpment donated to the academres from the
Local Authonty on conversmn to an academy.

: Transfers .

Transfers represent expenditure belng funded from unrestricted funds and repairs and marntenance funded
from capltal grants .
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18 Funds | o | |

Movemeﬁts in funds - previous year . ) . . o
Balance at . ~ Gains,. Balance at

2 March . - losses and 31 August
" 2015 " Income Expenditure transfers - 2016
v : A £'000 £'000 . - £'000 - - £000 £'000
Restricted general funds S o .
General Annual Grant , : - 5159  (5,226) 67 . -
“Start up grants _ - 100. (100) . - o
- Other DfE / ESFA grants o - 1,105 - (1,108) - ' - -
Other government grants . .~ A - © 124 (124) " - -
“'Other restricted funds =~ - 1,094 - (1,094) ' - -
Funds 'excluding‘pensions‘ R - 7,582-'. . (7,649)A'A - 67 . ST
Pension reserve . . - o - CoTsy) (114) (306), (1,173)
S 6,829 (7,763) (239) . (1173)
Restrivct_ed fixed asset funds . _ - : g T
Transferred on conversion ST - 13,535 g . (80) - e 13,455
Total restricted funds - 20,364 .- (7,843) ~(239) 12,282
Unrestricted funds A o : B o } ~
General funds . . : R -~ 456 (139) - (67) 250
Total funds . g _ - 20,820 (7,982)‘ : (306) 12,532 »

Page 45 of 56



HastingsAcademies Trust (formerly University of Brighton Academies Trust)
Notes to th.'e accounts for the year ended 31 August 2017 (con_tinued)' :
18' ‘Funds

"Total funds analysis by academy

) ) : ) _ : _Total
Fund balances at 31 August 2017 were allocated as follows:’ . o © . £'000
Blackthorns Primary Academy ) . . ' ’ 146

. Holmbush Primary Academy ' . o o - 56

~ Lindfield Primary Academy : . - ' " L . - 66
-Pound Hill Infant Academy . , ' i ‘ 25
Central Services . L S
Desmond Anderson Primary Academy . ‘ ’ '_ ' 85
The Burgess Hill Academy . ' : . : (188)
Tetallbefore fixed assets fund and pen_sien reserve C B ' . . 181
Restricted fixed assetfund . : - ' : ) ' 34,634
Pension reserve : , B ... (1,687)
Total funds . L . o ' 33,148

The Burgess Hill Academy is carrying a deficit of £188k on these funds.

" Prior to the school joiningﬂthe Trust, detailed discussiens were held.with the Departmeni for- Educatioh regarding
the structural deficit of the school, due to hlstoncally low pupil numbers and high staffing costs and a recovery plan
putin place.

Post conversion the situation was exacerbated as a result of staff expenditure being higher than anticipated. It
was identified that 3.6 FTE teaching posts including science, maths, food technology and MFL, required to deliver
the base curriculum, were not included in the information provided to the Trust pre conversion, and that the school

. had insufficient resource to deliver the GCSE Music curriculum. Non pay costs were higher than anticipated for a
number of reasons including, increased invigilation as a result of exam changes, and replacement of PCs and
projectors due to techmcal fallures in year, adversely affectlng the budget developed pre conversion.

In addition to the actions detailed in the recovery plan submitted to the. DfE and ESFA in May 2016 robust action
has been taken to ensure cost effectiveness and value for money from 2016/17 onwards. A budget review has

. been undertaken and budget management strategies being employed to address the underlying structural deficit
whilst ensuring delivery of a broad and balanced curriculum through quality teaching. The strategies include
effective management of curriculum related and all non-pay budgets to reduce spending; a review of support staff .
and teaching structures resulting in reduction to align more closely with the current level of pupil numbers. The

" model achieved through these savings enables the school to deliver an effective core offer of English, Maths,
Science, ICT, Languages, Humanities, PE, Cltlzenshlp, Design Technology. .

The speed at WhICh this academy can come back to a breakeven position quI ‘in part,-be dependent on the -

phasing of the National Funding Formula as this academy’s per pupil funding is predicted to increase, and growth
in pupil numbers, which is already evudent since the academy joined the Trust.
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Notes to the accounts for the year ended 31 August 2017 (contmued)

" Total cost analysis by academy

’ Expendnture mcurred by each academy durmg the year was as fo|lows

—

Teaching and Other Educatlonal - Other costs Total
educationalsupport staff _ supplies excluding . .
supportstaff - - costs - " depreciation
costs ’ v e :
£'000 . £'000° £'000 _ £000 £'000
_ Blackthorns Primary o 709 - 125 - 10 . 160 £ 1,004
Holmbush Primary o 718 80 20 .. . 350 - . 1,168
_ Lindfield.Primary Academy T 1,420 1M1 40 443 . 2,014
Pound Hill Infant Academy - 882 - 364 . . 11 486 1,743
Central Services - S ©(5) 957 . 12 -+ 460 1,424
Desmond Anderson - | 816 - 178 - . - 20 121 - 1,135
Primary Academy . o EEE . } - -
- The Burgess Hill Academy 2,998 - 774 123 -857 . 4,452
7,538 2,589 . 236 2,577 12,940

— " emm—
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Hastings Academies Trust (formerly University of Brighton Academies Trust)
- Notes to the accounts f'or‘the year ended 31 Alug'ust 201'7 (continued) .
18 Funds ‘ o \ ‘

Funds analysis by academy - previous year

Total

. . . - . . : 2016
Fund balances at 31 August 2016 were allocated as follows: ' c £'000

* Blackthorns Primary Academy . S L » ' 118
Holmbush Primary Academy . . S PRI 115

- Lindfield Primary Academy. ] . : - . . 32 .

Pound Hill Infant Academy - : o | o - (15),
Central Services ' : ' . : e
Total before fixed assets fund and pension reser\'/e. ' . ‘ - 250

: Restricte'd fixed asset fund ‘ : o ) L ' . i ' 13,455
Pension reserve - ' T — ‘ . . “(1,173)
Totalfunds - . . B ' - : 12,532

Total cost analysis by academy - previous year
* Expenditure incurred by each academy during the previous year was as follows:

- ' : o - Total

Teaching and Other support Educational ' Other costs .- 2016

educational staff costs = supplies excluding
support staff e - . ~depreciation
: costs C 4 c - .

£'000 - £'000 ~ £'000 - £'000 ‘£'000

Blackthorns Primary Academy ~ 1,064 182 a2 285 . 1563
Holmbush Primary Academy : ' 914 . 119 51 . - 315 © 1,399
Lindfield Primary Academy 1,395 146 . . 90- 414 © 2,045

Pound Hill Infant Academy 857 - .200 38 506 - 1,601
Central Services . o 806 127 T . 360 - 1204
- 4-,221 : 1,453 o 348 - 1,880 7,902“

Page 48 of 56



Haétings‘Academies‘ Trust (forme.rly Unive_rsity" of Brighton Academies Trust)

Notes to-,th'e accounts'fo_r'_th‘e year ended 31 August 2017 (continue'd)v |

19

"Analysis of net assets between funds

Unrestricied o . Restricted funds: ) Total

Funds ‘General Fixed asset 2017
£'000 . £000 - - £000 £'000
Fund balances at 31 August 2017 are - : o o
represented by: . ) : : . o .
Tangible fixed assets ‘ _ . Co- : - 34,634 34,634
-Current assets’ ' . 181 . 2,005 - 2,186
Creditors falling due within one year - - (2,005). - - (2,005)
Defined benefit pension liability o ) - (1,667) . - . (1,667)
181 . (1,667) 34,634 . 33,148
. Unrestricted ~ Restricted funds: Total
Funds General Fixed asset - - 2016
: . £'000 | £'000 £000 - £'000
‘Fund balances at 31 August 2016 are : ' '
.represented by: . ‘ ) ‘ _
- Tangible fixed assets » : - - 13,455 . 13,455
_ Current assets 662 1,041 T 1,703
Creditors falling due within one year o (412) (1,041) ' - (1,453)
Defined benefit pension liability = - o (1,173) . oo o (1,173)
250 (1,173) 13,455 . 12,532

20

»lntroductlon : ‘

" Pensions and similar obligations

"The academy trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme

England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff, and the Local Government Pension Scheme

- (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by East Sussex County Councn Both are muIt| employer

defined benefit- schemes

The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the édvice of independent qualified actuaries. The latest
actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the perlod ended 31 March 2012 and that of the LGPS related to the
penod ended 31 March 2016. . , . :

Contrlbutlons amountmg to £155k (2016: £70k) were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2017 and are
included within credltors

Teachers' Pension Scheme )

/.

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contnbutory, defined benef t scheme, governed by the
Teachers' Pensions Regulations.(2010) and, from 1 April 2014, by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme
Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic-for full-time teachers in academies and, from 1 January 2007,
automatic for teachers in part-time employment followmg appomtment or a change of contract, although they -

‘are able to opt out.
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20

Pensions and similar obllgatlons :

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on a '‘pay as you go’ baSlS these contnbutlons '
along with those made by employets are credited to the Exchequer. Retlrement and other pension benef ts
are paid by public funds provided by Parliament. -

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pensmn Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 publlshed .
by HM Treasury. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme
valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many other

_factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2012 and in accordance with

the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014. The valuatlon report was
published by the Department for Educatlon on9 June 2014,

The key elements of the valuatlon and subsequent consultation are

. employer contribution rates set at 16. 48% of pensuonable pay (|nclud|ng a 0.08% employer
administration charge (currently 14.1%)

e total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in paymerit and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective date of £191,500 million, and notional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuatnon date) of £176 600 million giving a notional
past service deficit of £14,900 million .

an employer cost cap of 10.9% of pensionable pay will be applied to future valuations

the assumed real rate of return is 3.0% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of
real earnlngs growth is assumed to be 2. 75% The assumed nomlnal rate of return is 5.06%

During the prewous year the employer contribution rate was 14.1%. The TPS valuation for 2012 determmed
an employer rate of 16.48%, which was payable from September 2015. The next valuation of the TPS is
currently underway based on April 2016 data, whereupon the employer contrlbut|0n rate is expected to be.
reassessed and will be payable from 1 Aprll 2019.

The employer’s pension costs paid to the TPS in the period amounted to £723k (2016: £424k).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions website.

Under the deﬁnitions setoutin FRS 102, the TPS is a multi-employer pension scheme. The trust has
accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The trust has set out
above the information available on the scheme. - .

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined-benefit scheme with the assets held in separate trustee-administered funds.
The total contributions are as noted below. The agreed contribution rates for future years are 24 7% for
employers and 5.5% to 12.8% for employees. .

’

The LGPS obligation relates to the employees of the academy trust who were employees transferred as part
of the conversion from the maintained school (as described in note 26) together with new employees who

joined the scheme in.the period. The obligation in respect of employees who transferred on conversion

represents their cumulative service at both the predecessor school and the academy trust at the balance
sheet date. .

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the
event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.
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20

_Pensions and similar obligations

Total contributions made S ' - 2017
. . . N . . . N . £I°o°
Embloyer's contributions o o _ o S . - - 503
Employees' contributions A ‘ : A N N K]
‘Total contributions . . v o .. et6
'Principal actuarial assumptions S : . 2017
Rate of increases in salaries o S 31
Rate of increase for pensions in payment . i ) s .24
Discount rate . . o ‘ : 2.5

% .

A

2016
£000

251
59

310

2016

“NN'A N

The current mortality assumptions include suffi cient allowance for future |mprovements in mortallty rates The

assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

2017
Years
Retiring today . v : . .
- Males - ' ' o . 236
.- Females i . .. ' . . 250
Retiring in'20 years : S C
-Males n _ _ , : 26.0°
-Females - ' o o . 278
- Scheme liabilities would have been affected by changes in assumptions as follows:
) - o S ‘ - 2017 -
_ A } - - L ' £'000
"Discount rate - 0.5% R ‘ 623
Salary rate +.0.5% ' : a ‘ , 92

Pensions rate + 0.5% = .. » : . 521
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26

27

29

'
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- Notes to the accounts for the year ended 31 August 201Z (continued')‘

20 Pensions and similar obligations

The academy trust's share of the.assets in the scheme ' ' S 2017 . - 2016
- ' a : ' . Fairvalue  Fair value
_£'000- " - £'000
Equiies B L : R 1,700 - 1,072
Bonds o ‘ ' . » 1,209 ' 235
Property ‘ -~ : : R : ' . 282 118
Other assets : ‘ B _ . _ .99 ' 44
- “Total market value of assets. o : o .. 3270 - 1,469 .
Acttj'al return on scheme assets - gain/(loss) .‘ : ' A . ’ © 346 : 100 =
Amounts rec‘og.nised in the statement of ﬁhahcial activities ' T : 2017 . 2016
: ’ £'000 £'000
Current service cost - : - ’ . 786 (332)
Past service cost : S : _ .20 . ..
Interest income - ) " ' . : _ ) . : (48) " (80)
" Interest cost - . . o . . 84 .
Total operating charge S o : ' 842 (412)
Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations " 2017 i 2016
: o ' - £'000 - £'000
Obligations at 1 September 2016 R . - - 2642 -
Obligations acquired on conversion ' S o 1,432 1,697
Current service cost S ' . 786 ... 332.
Interest cost - : : I . 84 80
. Employee contributions . R 113 - 59
Actuarial (gain)/loss - R ‘ (116) - 474
~ Benefits paid - A . : ' ' o (24) .
Past service cost N c ' ' . ' 20 - -
At 31 August 2017 ‘ _ . A 4 4;937_. . . 2,642
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20

- 21

22

2017
£'000
Assets at 1 September 2016 R - . : . 1,469
_ Assets acquired on conversion ‘ : o , 863
. Interest income . Coe _— ‘ . 48
Actuarial gain - o o o ' A o 298
Employer contributions . . o S 503 °
Employee contributions : ‘ o ‘ ‘ 13
Benefits paid - o ‘ . : (24)
At31August2017 - | SR o 3270
Reconciliation of net income to net cash flows from op‘ei'ating "at':tivities
' : ) ‘ o 2017
£'000
Net income for the reporting period : - . 20,202
L . L < : '
Adjusted for: : A ‘ '
Net surplus on conversion to’ academy o ' (20,961)
Capital grants from DfE/ESFA and other capntal income . ' - (411)
Investment income receivable R ) . (1)
" Defined benefit pension costs less contrlbutlons payable . . . 303
Defined benefit pension net finance cost . , : - . 36
- Depreciation of tangible fixed assets , . R - 168"
(Increase) in stocks . ' o o ()
(Increase) in debtors T o : - ' (101)
Increase in creditors ' o A g 552
'Net cash used in operating activities . : S L (218)

~

Notes to,fhe accovun»ts for the year ended 31 August _-2017_.(contir1'ued‘)

Pensions and similar obligations

Changes in the fair value of the academy trust's share of scheme assets

Coimhitnients under operating leases -

2016
£'000

944
47
168

251

59

1,469

2016
£'000

~12,838

(13,107) -
(178) -
- (1)
114

80
(388)
1,453

811

At 31 August 2017 the total future mlnlmum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases were as
- follows: : : - :

2017
£000
_ Amounts due within one year A ' v » 22
Amounts due in two and five years . B ' : T 17
39
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: Hastings Academies Trust (formerly University of Brighton Academies Trust)

Notes to  the accounts for the year ended 31 August 2017 (continued)

- 23

In additio_n. expenditure on other services provided by the University of Brighton are as follows:

Related party transactions - :

Owing to the nature of the academy trust's operations and the composition of the board of trustees being
drawn from local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in
which the academy trust has an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted at arm's

" length and in accordance with the academy trust's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures.

The foIIowrng related party transaction took place in the period of account

- The Hasting Academies Trust and the University of Brighton Academies Trust (who merged on the 1

September 2017) had shared central sérvices during the year, the University of Brighton Academies Trust
purchasing these at cost from the Hastings Academies Trust. School to school support was engaged in
between the two trusts and the participating academies mvorced for the time invested These transactions

" ‘amounted to £22,000. .

One of the Trustees is a trustee of the University of Chichester. During 2016- 17 the Trust paid this Umversrty
£1 350 for tuition fees for'the 'Vice Principal of Blackthorns Primary Academy.. , .

Mrs M Brand, Prinmpal at Blackthorns Primary Academy, is married to'Mr M Brand, a trustee. Her pay is set
in accordance with the Trusts pay policy.

© Since incorporation the Trust has been sponsored by the University of Brighton. This includes financial

sponsorship to support University of Brighton Academies Trust operational costs not covered by the service.

.charges levied on trust academies, and the use of office space at the Unrversrty s Falmer and Moulsecoomb

campuses for no further consideration.

The former Chief Executive retired on 315t December 2016. During his employment he only received
remuneration in respect of services provided undertaking the role of Chief Executive under his contract of

. ‘employment and not in respect of his role as Trustee. The value of his’ remuneration was as follows:

P Griffiths (Chief Executive and trustee)

Remuneration: : £10,000-£15, 000 (15-16: £50,000 - £55,000)
Employers pension contributions: £0 - £5,000 (15-16: £5,000-£10,000)
The former Chief Executrve reimbursed the Trust for the cost of a laptop (£1,219).

'The Interim Chief Executive took up his role as of 1%t January 2017 at no cost to the Trust.

Thé University also provrdes other key management personnel to-enable the Trust to achieve its objectives -
the Director of Policy and Governance, Director of Operational Services and Director of Schoo! Improvement.
The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pénsions contributions) received for service to the

. academy trust was £67,472 (15-16: £111,838). One member of administrative staff supporting the Trust's
. work has a contract of employment with the University of Brighton, a proportion of their salary costs (£15,851)

were re-charged to the Trust (15-16 £52,875 for 3 staff).

£
- ) (2016-17) (2015-16)
Falmer office service charges (inc. hospitality, o £11,625 £20,341
Computer consumables) ‘ . : .
Other professional services (desrgn & marketrng) . £6,067 £3,730
Staff Travel . o : £3,920 £4,334
. : . £21612 £28,405
" Trust sponsorship income : ’
: . 2016-17 (E) ' 15-16 (£)
Net.UoB Expenditure i 123,728 | . . "~ . 543,930
VAT charged by UoB (claimable : : . 24,746 - 108,786
from HMRC) ]
Direct sponsorship payments : : - 145,938 | ~ . 100,000
Outstanding (August direct . ‘ 46,688 ’ © 25,340
expenditure) : . -
: 341,100 778,056 |
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25

Other expendlture and mcome with the Umversﬁy through academies rather than the central Trust is as

follows:-

Notes to -th'e accouvnts‘ for the year ended 31 August 2017 (continued)

15-16.(£)

2016-17 (£)

Expenditure :
School-Direct salaried Students 17,490 10,494

| Other 887 200
Total 18,377 10,694
Income
Student Teacher mentoring 1,950 ~
Girls Cricket Coaching . 600 -
Supply cover paid for 188 :
Secondments ~ -- 3,388
Student Placement Income : . 3,125
Total 2,738 6,513 |

The Trust shares’ central-administrative staff with the Hastings Academies Trust (HAT). All such stéff ére

for 2016-17 is £577,752, with £93 142 outstanding at the end of the year.

Members' liability

.employed by HAT, with an agreed proportion of salaries and expenses being invoiced to the Trust The total

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contnbute to the assets.of the company in the event of

it being wound-up while he or she is.a member, or within one year after he ér she ceases to be a member,

such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 as stated in memorandum and articles of assomatton] for
the debts and liabilities contracted before he or she ceases to be a member.

Teaching School trading account

Direct income
Government grants

Direct costs

Direct staff costs
Professional / Teacher Tralnlng
Educational consultancy

. Other costs

Support staff costs
Technology costs

. Maintenance of premlses and equupment

Security and transport
Other support costs

Total expenditure '

Surplu~slr(deﬁcit) from all sources

2017

£000  £000

487

30
214
184

428

Teaching School balances at 1 September 2016

Teaching School balances at 31 August 2017
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2016
£000 .

35,
182

217

£'000

217
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Hastlngs Academles Trust (formerly University of Brighton Academies Trust)

Notes to the accounts for the year ended 31 August 2017 (contlnued)

26 Conversion'to an academy

On 01/09/2016 and 01/02/2017 Oakmeeds Communlty College and Desmond Anderson Primary School
converted to academy trust status under the Academies Act 2010 and all the operations and assets and
liabilities were transferred to Hastings Academies Trust (formerly University of Brighton Academies Trust)
from the Local Authonty for £nil consideration.

The transfer has been accounted for as a combination that is in substance a gift. The assets and liabilities
transferred were valued at their fair values and recognised in the balance sheet under the appropriate

. headings with a corresponding net amount recognlsed as a net gain in the statement of ﬁnanmal activities as -
donations — transfer from local authority on conversron .

The followmg table sets out the falr values of the identifiable assets and liabilities transferred and an analy5|s .
. ,of their recognition in the statement of financial actrvmes

Academy L o Locatlon , I Date of conversion
Desmond Anderson Primary Academy ' Crawley A 1 February 2017
The Burgess Hill Academy Burgess Hill 1 September 2016
: - o , 2017
Net assets transferred: - ' N - ' » ' : o : £'000
Leasehold land and‘buildings : ' : o : _ . o 21,341
Cash L . o o , ! 189
‘LGPS pension surplus/(def cit) - - . _ . (569)
20,961
Unrestricted " Restricted funds: "~ Total
< . . _ S Funds = General Fixed asset 2017 -
Funds surplus/(deficit) transferred: o _£'000 ~£'000 £'000 £'000
Fixed assets funds ~ ~ n . - 21341 21,341
LA budget funds : S 189 : - - ' 189
LGPS pension funds : - (569) - (569)
189 (569) 21,341 © 20,961
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